
Schools Forum 
Agenda 

 
Tuesday, 17 January 2017 
4.30 pm – 6.30pm, Sydenham Secondary School, Dartmouth Road 
London SE26 4RD 
 
For more information contact:  Janita Aubun tel. 020 8314 7030 
Email:  janita.aubun@lewisham.gov.uk 
 
 

 
Item  Pages 

 
1.   Apologies and Acceptance of Apologies 

 
 

2.   Declaration of Interests 
 

 

3.   Minutes of the Meeting 8 December 2016 
 

1 - 7 

4.   Matters Arising 
 

 

5.   Funding Consultation 
 
The DFE published on the 14 December 2016, their second consultation 
on the national funding formula and high needs funding.  This paper looks 
at those proposals. 
 

8 - 19 

6.   Dedicated Schools Grant Budget Report 2017/18 
 
To agree the Dedicated Schools Budget for next year and how it will be 
allocated to schools.  
 

20 - 40 

7.   Any Other Business 
 
Future Meetings 
 
09 February 2017 
16 March 2017 
 
All meetings will be held between 16.30 and 18.30 
 
 
Sub Group Meetings 
 
 

 



 

High Needs Sub 
Group 

Early Years Sub 
Group 

Funding Task Group 

03 March 2017 19 January 2017 
02 March 2017 
 
 

*07 February 2017 

*These meeting dates will depend on whether the second national 
funding consultation document has been received.  

 
 

   



 

  
LEWISHAM SCHOOLS FORUM 

Minutes of the meeting held on Thursday 8th December 2016 

   
Membership (Quorum = 40% i.e. 8)  = present  =absent     a = apologies 

      s = substitute  

  Attendance 

Primary School 
Headteachers 

 04/02 17/03 30/06 06/10 08/12 

Liz Booth Dalmain    a  

Paul Moriarty Good Shepherd   a   

Michael Roach John Ball      

Sharon Lynch St William of York   a   

Keith Barr Kender      

Nursery School Headteacher       

Nikki Oldhams Chelwood a a a   

Secondary School 
Headteachers 

      

Jan Shapiro Addey & Stanhope  a   a 

David Sheppard Leathersellers 
Federation 

  a   

Mark Phillips Deptford Green      

Ruth Holden Bonus Pastor     a 

Special School Headteacher       

Lynne Haines  Greenvale      

       

Pupil Referral Unit 
Headteacher 

      

Dr Liz Jones Abbey Manor a  a   

Primary School Governors       

Rosamund Clarke Perrymount      

Dame Erica Pienaar  John Ball      

Keith Dwan  King Alfred Federation      

Secondary & Special School 
Governors 

      

Pat Barber Bonus Pastor   a   

James Pollard Addey & Stanhope   a  a 

Ruth Elliot Watergate    a  

Academies       
Declan Jones Haberdashers’ Aske’s   a   

14-19 Consortium Rep       

Gordon Gillespie 14-19 Consortium    s  

Early Years Rep       



 

Cathryn Kinsey Clyde Nursery      

Diocesan Authorities       
Sara Sanbrook-Davies Southwark Diocesan 

Board of Education 
     

Stephen Bryan Education Commission      

 
Also Present  

Dave Richards CYP Group Finance Manager 

Sara Williams Executive Director CYP 

Warwick Tomsett Head of Commissioning, Strategy & Performance 

Kate Bond Head of Standards & Achievement 

Hayden Judd Principal Accountant - Schools 

David Humphreys  LB Lewisham 

Nikki Sealy Early Years Quality & Sufficiency 

Lea Bonnell NUT - Observer 

Melanie Simpson Observer – Early Years 

Claudia Smith Observer 

Aron Brown Observer 

Janita Aubun Clerk 

 
 
 

1. Apologies and Acceptance of Apologies 
 

Apologies received from Jan Shapiro, Ruth Holden and James Pollard. 
Apologies accepted.  
 
Sara Sanbrook-Davies welcomed to Schools Forum as the Southwark 
Diocesan Board of Education representative.  
 
Forum requested to send wishes for a speedy recovery to James Pollard. 
 
  

2. Declaration of Interests 
 
There were no declaration of interests. 
 

3. Minutes of the Meeting held 6 October 2016 
 
Minutes were agreed. 
 

4. Matters Arising 
 
No matters arising. 
 

5. Traded Services  
 
Forum were presented with an outline of the recommendations of the review 
of services traded with schools. Forum were advised of the proposed SLA 
changes for 2017/18 and explained that schools would be consulted on 
significant changes, including new services i.e. Emergency & Business 
Continuity Training, Safeguarding. 
For services with minimal or no change, the SLAs will be clearer and the costs 
up-front. 
 



 

An online consultation survey will be sent to schools next week to establish 
their objectives when purchasing local authority services and a focus group 
session will be held in January 2017. 
 
Lewisham is aiming to publish SLAs by the end January 2017 in order to give 
schools longer time to decide which services to buy and to give the LA 
sufficient time to plan for the next financial year. 
 
Forum did not identify any additional SLAs to be consulted on. 
 

Decision: 
 

 Report noted. 
 

 Approach to consultation approved. 
 

 
6. High Needs Group - Annual Report 

 
Report chaired by Vice-Chair to Schools Forum. Forum were presented with a 
report that considered the recommendations of the High Needs sub group on 
the banding review, savings needed to the funding block for 2017/18 and to 
agree the work plan for the group.  
 
High Needs Block Saving Proposals 
 
Proposed £0.5m Special Schools Budgets 
£1m Schools CERA 
 
Banding Review 
 
The High Needs Sub Group oversaw the work of this review. Main principles 
behind the proposals are that the system should be cost neutral over the total 
budget of special schools and the need for greater clarity in the system of 
which band a pupil fits into, with a system for easy moderation. 
 
Lewisham have employed an independent officer to carry out the moderation 
of the revised bands. 
 
Forum raised concern about the outreach work provision for Drumbeat. 
Officers explained that the outreach budget is separate from this review and 
therefore will not be affected. 
 

Decision: 
 
 

 Schools Forum noted the financial pressure created by the growth in 
pupil with Education, Care and Health Plans of £1.7m.  
 

 Agreed savings:- 
 

 Special Schools budget reduction of £0.5m (excluding New 
Woodlands). 



 

 £1m capital expenditure from Revenue (CERA) budget in the 
schools block of the DSG be used to offset the pressure. 

 Noted last year’s £0.2m agreed savings on Alternative Provision 
which covered Abbey Manor College and New Woodlands. 

  
 The new banding model for Special Schools be implemented from 1 

April 2017.  
 

 New funding rates initially be set as follows:- 
 
Band E - £6,200 
Band F - £15,200 
Band G - £27,900 
 

 With the Special Schools budget £0.5m reduction, the rates will be:- 
 

Band E - £5,859 
Band F - £14,742 
Band G - £26,365 
 

 Application be made to the DfE to dis-apply the minimum funding 
guarantee for special schools.  
 

 Noted the progress on the resource base banding review. 
 

 Thanked the members of the task group for their work during the year. 
 

 Asked the task group members if they wished to continue on the group. 
 

 Forum confirmed the task group membership. Forum were also 
informed that Marie Neave, Headteacher at Drumbeat, has offered to 
join the group and this offer was accepted 
 

 Forum asked the task group to carry out the following over the coming 
year:- 
 

 Implement the banding review in resource bases and maintained 
schools and ensure that funding is linked across all providers, 
including alternative provision – to ensure fairness and 
transparency. 

 Continue to consider how the financial pressures of the high 
needs block be addressed. 

 Consider any new national consultation on the high needs block, 
respond appropriately and assess the impact for Lewisham. 

 Review the Local Authority’s place planning numbers in respect 
of High Need Funded places. 
 

 
7. Early Years Sub Group - Annual Report 

 
Forum were asked to consider the recommendations of this group having 
examined the DfE consultation on introducing a new early years national 
funding formula for 3 & 4 year olds, changing the way the LA funds early 



 

years providers and the funding of children with special educational 
needs/disabilities. 
 
Forum were informed that a response has since been received from the DfE 
confirming the initial recommendations. 
The latest response on the outcome of the consultation will be brought to 
forum on 17 January. 
 

Decision: 
 
Schools forum agreed the following recommendations:- 
 

 Nursery school protection be ring-fenced and distributed in consultation 
with the nursery school heads. 
 

 Universal Base Rate to be deferred till April 2018. 
 

 Deprivation factor be calculated in the same way as under the current 
formula. 
 

 Additional hours for children from deprived backgrounds should be 
reduced to a third of its current provision. 

 
  

8. Budget Monitoring Report and Financial Update 
 
Report presented to Forum to look at the budget monitoring position of the 
Dedicated Schools Grant and consider the financial position of the mutual 
funds held. 
 
Budget Monitoring 
 
Forum were informed that as at end 2015/16 financial year, 11 schools had 
deficit balances with only 3 of the schools having a license deficit agreement 
in place. 
Recent budget monitoring returns show another 8 schools going into deficit in 
2017/18. As at the date of Forum, there remains 3 schools who have not 
submitted their budget monitoring; a second reminder is being sent in 
accordance with the department’s escalation process. 
 
To support schools, briefing and training sessions have been and continue to 
be held with schools, the latest being on 1 December 2016 targeted at senior 
management teams and chair of governors. 
Forum raised that it might be useful to provide training specifically for special 
schools. 
 
There was also talk about the possibilities of schools collaborating on 
procurement and the challenges this may pose in terms of 
ownership/responsibility. 
 
Mutual Funds 
 



 

The current forecast position of the growth fund £205k surplus, contingency 
£66k surplus and non-sickness supply fund £874k deficit, was presented to 
Forum. 
 

Decision: 
 

 Report noted. 
 

 Forum noted the position on the school budget monitoring escalation 
process as detailed in the report. 
 
 

9. Education Services Grant – Retained Duties 
 
Paper discussed the Department for Education’s intention to remove the ESG 
(Education Services Grant), previously paid to Local Authorities and to  move 
some of the funding to the Dedicated Schools Budget and the level of budget 
required to manage the statutory services. 
 
It was recommended to Forum that a reduction to the DSG schools block be 
made in line with the extra funding which has been transferred to provide 
statutory services to schools. This will be £15 per pupil. This will be adjusted 
to the amount in the settlement for 2017/18.  
 

Decision: 
 
Forum agreed the following recommendations:- 
 

 Centrally retain from the Dedicated Schools Grant an amount 
equivalent to £15 per pupil to fund the statutory services previously 
funded from the Education Services Grant.  
 

 Review this over the coming year to ensure the statutory services 
funded from the centrally retained element of the DSG, provide value 
for money.  
 

 Note the position of the central fund of the Education Services Grant. 
 
  

10. Dedicated Schools Grant Budget Report 2017/18 
 
This report was presented to Forum to agree the principles on which the 
Dedicated Schools Budget (DSG) will be allocated.  
Forum were informed that the 2017/18 funding settlement is likely to be 
announced the following week and the LA has a deadline of 20 January 2017 
to complete the DSG budget setting process.  
 
Support to minor capital works 
 
Schools business rates will increase this year as a revaluation has taken 
place. The charges will be implemented April 2017. The government will put in 
some transitional arrangements but there will be a funding gap of 
approximately £400k. 



 

Forum mentioned that there are companies who challenge rate revaluations 
operating on a no-win no-fee basis, and that the local authority might want to 
look into seeing what there is on the market.  
 
Playing Fields 
 
Forum were informed that there are alternative options for the funding 
arrangements here. It is recommended that the Funding Task Group review 
this and report back to Forum over the coming year. 
 
Decision:  
 

 Available funding be used to offset the funding pressure on the High 
Needs block of £1m.  
 

 PFI funding and BSF costs be built into the schools budget on a lump 
sum increased annually by inflation (RPIX at February) and schools 
charged on a like for like basis. 
 

 Funding Task Group be asked to provide a report on the funding of 
playing fields with possible alternatives. 
 

 Funding Task Group provide a report on the possibility of introducing a 
PFI Factor. 

 
 

11. Any Other Business 
 
 
No other business was raised. 
  
Meeting closed. 
 
Date of next meeting:- 
 
17 January         4.30 to 6.30pm 
 
 
 
 
SCHOOLS FORUM ACTION SUMMARY 

 

ITEM ACTION TO BE 
TAKEN 

OFFICER (S) 
RESPONSIBLE 

OUTCOME/ 
CURRENT 
POSITION 

Sub Group  
Membership 
March 2016 

Add Secondary Head 
to Formula 
Consultation Task 
Group 

Dave Richards  

 



Schools Forum  
17 January 2017 

Item 5 
 
 

 

LEWISHAM SCHOOLS FORUM  
 

 

REPORT TITLE 
 
 

 

National Funding Formula – Consultation Stage 2  
 

 

KEY DECISION 
 

 

Yes 
 

Item No.  
5 

 

CLASS 
 

 

Part 1 
 

Date  
 

17 January 2017 
 

 

 
1.  Purpose of this Report  

 
The purpose of this report is to update the Schools Forum on the outcome 
of the consultation on National Schools Funding Formula and to consider a 
second consultation that was issued at the same time.  

 
2.  Recommendations 
 

 That the Forum note the position for Lewisham and ask officers to 
draft a borough response to the second consultation. 

 
 

3. Funding Consultation 
 
The Department for Education issued on the 14 December 2016 their 
response to the national school funding reform consultation that took place 
in Spring 2016. Sitting alongside the response is a further consultation 
which runs to the 22 March 2017. This gives greater details of the impact 
of the national funding formula for the Schools Block and the High Needs 
Block for both local authorities and schools. 
 
The impact is less severe than the worst case scenario in the first 
consultation due to: 
 
1. The introduction of at least £200m of additional funding nationally in 

2018/19 and 2019/20 to limit the impact on ‘losers’. 
2. The inclusion of a 3 per cent funding floor. 
3. Additional funding for high needs, ensuring that no LA loses high 

needs funding as a result of the new formula 
 
However Lewisham is one of the biggest losers and considered alongside 
the increased cost pressures set out in 8 below, the impact is very 
significant. 

 
The full implementation date is set for April 2018 where individual schools 
funding will be delivered by national funding rates. 
 

3.1 Overall the position in Lewisham is: 
 



Schools Forum  
17 January 2017 

Item 5 
 

 
 
 
 
 

  
Total Change 

 

  
£m £m 

 2016/17 
baseline (£m) Schools block 

   
208.764    

 

High needs block 
     
48.652    

 Central school 
services block 

        
1.424    

 

Total 
   
258.841    

 

     Illustrative 
NFF funding 
in first year of 

transition 

Schools block 
   
205.870  

-        
2.89  

-
1.39% 

High needs block 
     
48.652  

               
-    

 Central school 
services block 

        
1.459  

          
0.03  

 

Total 
   
255.981  

-        
2.86  

 

     Illustrative 
NFF if fully 

implemented 
in 2016-17 

Schools block 
   
203.006  

-        
5.76  

-
2.76% 

High needs block 
     
48.652  

               
-    

 Central school 
services block 

        
1.513  

          
0.09  

 

Total 
   
253.171  

-        
5.67  

  
 

3.2 The typical size Lewisham schools will see the following type of reductions 
over the two year period:  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 £’000 
 

Large Secondary  200 

Small Secondary 150 

Large Primary 75 

Medium Primary  50 

Small Primary 30 



Schools Forum  
17 January 2017 

Item 5 
 

 
The percentage reduction is standard at the 2.8%. The reduction will be 
split evenly over the next two years starting from April 2018. School by 
school reductions can be seen in Appendix A. 
 

 
3.3 The table below shows the summary position of schools either gaining or 

losing under the proposed national funding formula.  
 

 
 

 
 
 
3.4 The position by Local Authority across London is as follows 
 



Schools Forum  
17 January 2017 

Item 5 
 

 
 
4. Implementation  

 
The DFE have confirmed that they will move to a ‘soft’ national funding 
formula in 2018-19. This means that although they will use the national 
funding formula (once it has been finalised following this consultation) to 
calculate local authorities’ funding allocations, local authorities will still 
determine individual schools’ funding allocations through their own local 
formula.  



Schools Forum  
17 January 2017 

Item 5 
 

 
In essence as Lewisham loses so much funding, all our schools will be on 
the minimum funding guarantee in 2018/19. As Lewisham will not have 
sufficient funding to do otherwise it would seem sensible to introduce the 
national funding formula straight away. Clarification and discussions will be 
held with the DFE and before any decision is made, a report will be 
brought to Forum. 
 
From 2019-20, the national funding formula will be used to calculate the 
vast majority of each individual school’s budget.  How the funding in terms 
of cash will flow between the DFE and schools is unknown.   
 

5. Schools Forums  
 
There is no clear position on Schools Forums, despite proposals to 
distribute funding directly to schools and by-pass Schools Forums 
completely. DfE say that they will consult further on the precise 
arrangements for 2019-20 when the hard national funding formula will be 
implemented. This consultation is likely to include proposals for legislative 
changes and the future role of Schools Forums. London Councils have 
already argued strongly for the retention of Schools Forums as they 
provide local flexibility to be able to respond swiftly to changing 
circumstances. 
 

6. Central services funding block  
 
The DfE is proposing to create a new funding block known as the “Central 
Services funding block” to distribute funding to local authorities to 
discharge their education statutory duties in relation to all local children. It 
mainly covers the retained duties element of the former Education 
Services Grant and the admissions team.  It will be formed from the 
schools block funding that is currently held centrally by local authorities as 
well as the retained duties element of the Education Services Grant (ESG). 
It will be distributed to local authorities on a simple formulaic basis. 
Lewisham gains funding slightly on this but the total block is only £1.5m. 
 

7. High needs Block 
 
The DFE has also published a high needs national funding formula 
consultation on the 14th December, which will run until the 22nd March 
2017. Under DFE proposals there will be no cash losses to local 
authorities as a result of the high needs formula. Clarity will be sought with 
the DFE as to whether this ‘protection’ means no growth will be funded in 
the future.    
 
Appendix B give the details of the calculations.  
 
 
 
 



Schools Forum  
17 January 2017 

Item 5 
 
8. Cost pressures in Schools  

 
The Department for Education estimates that mainstream schools will have 
to find savings of £3.0 billion (8.0%) by 2019-20 to counteract cumulative 
cost pressures, such as pay rises and higher employer contributions to 
national insurance and the teachers’ pension scheme. It expects that 
schools will need to make efficiency savings through better procurement 
(estimated savings of £1.3 billion) and by using their staff more efficiently 
(the balance of £1.7 billion). This is broadly in line with local estimates. 
With the national funding formula proposed reductions of 3% for Lewisham 
schools and the cost pressures above, schools will have to find reductions 
of 11% over the next three years. For our largest secondary schools who 
have income of around £10m this will mean savings of £1m. 
 

9. Early Years Funding 
 
The DFE have issued a new funding formula for Early Years providers.  
The overall outcome will be that Nursery schools will see very significant 
reductions in funding, Maintained school nursery classes will see some 
reduction, generally in the region of £9k per class and the private, 
voluntary and independent sector will see increases. 
 
The proposed national funding formula for funding local authorities will 
receive, is made up of: 
 

o 89.5% Pupil numbers 

o 8% KS1 FSM numbers 

o 1.5% EAL numbers 

o 1% DLA numbers 

o There is an area cost adjustment based on general labour market 

costs and rates bills. 

 
Unlike schools funding, early years funding will continue to be distributed 
by Local Authorities through a local formula. The most significant change 
to the local funding formula will be that there must be only one universal 
base hourly rate for all types of providers. Currently this is not the case in 
Lewisham. The rates we have used are: 
 

    £7.70 Nursery schools 
    £4.85/£5.13 Primary schools (dependent upon OFSTED rating) 
    £3.84/£4.67 PVI’s (dependent upon OFSTED rating) 

 
The Schools Forum set up an EYFS Task Group to look at the proposals in 
more details. 
 
Their key recommendations, agreed by the Forum at its last meeting were 
 

o The Universal Base Rate was deferred until April 2018. This 
enables the school rates to be held up at the expense of PVI rates. 



Schools Forum  
17 January 2017 

Item 5 
 

 
o Currently additional Nursery hours are allocated to children deemed 

to have social needs. This will be reduced to a third of its current 
provision. Currently 279 children receive this and the budget is 
£900k. In the longer term it will not be permissible for Local 
Authorities to fund additional hours for these type of children.  

 
o The proposals include details of the extra 30 hours implementation 

of childcare from September 2017. This increase will only be 
available to working parents 

 
The response to the Early Years consultation now says it is not permissible 
to allocate additional hours for social need after April 2019.  A further 
report will therefore be brought to the Forum on this. 
 
The government has guaranteed funding to protect nursery schools for the 
life of this parliament. Within the settlement the amount of funding for 
Nursery schools’ protection has been reduced by £110k to £479k. The 
previously published allocation was broadly speaking a match for the two 
schools’ losses, so this reduction will impact on schools and is equivalent 
to 6.6% of their 3&4 year old funding. 
 
  

10. Funding task group  
 
The Funding task group was set up to respond to the national fair funding 
consultation. The first meeting is scheduled to be early in February. It is 
worth going ahead with that meeting to discuss a borough response which 
could go from the Mayor but it is unlikely that this will generate much 
change. 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 

Dave Richards  

Group Finance Manager – Children and Young People 

Contact on 020 8314 9442 or by e-mail at dave.richards@lewisham.gov.uk 
 
 

mailto:dave.richards@lewisham.gov.uk


Proposed Impact of the National Funding Formula if  implemented on the basis of the consultation document. Schools Forum 

17 January 2017

Item 5 

Appendix A

The school's baseline 

funding is the total core 

funding received 

through the schools 

block and MFG in 2016-

17. Other grants/funding 

sources are excluded. 

Baseline funding

School Name

Funding the school 

received in 2016-17 or 

2016/17

Illustrative total 

NFF funding

Change compared 

to baseline (£)

Change 

compared to 

baseline (%)

Illustrative NFF 

year 1 funding

Change compared 

to baseline (£)

Change 

compared to 

baseline (%)

Illustrative NFF 

year 2 funding

Change 

compared to 

baseline (£)

Change 

compared to 

baseline (%)

[a] [b]
[c] = [b]/[a] - 

1
[d] [e] = [d]/[a] - 1 [d] [e] = [d]/[a] - 1

£207,759,000 £201,975,000 -£5,784,000 -2.8% £204,848,000 -£2,911,000 -1.4% £207,721,000 -£2,873,000 -1.4%

Adamsrill Primary School £2,608,000 £2,535,000 -£73,000 -2.8% £2,571,000 -£37,000 -1.4% £2,607,000 -£36,000 -1.4%

Addey and Stanhope School £4,111,000 £3,992,000 -£119,000 -2.9% £4,052,000 -£59,000 -1.4% £4,112,000 -£60,000 -1.5%

All Saints' Primary School £979,000 £954,000 -£25,000 -2.6% £967,000 -£12,000 -1.3% £980,000 -£13,000 -1.3%

Ashmead Primary School £1,298,000 £1,263,000 -£35,000 -2.7% £1,281,000 -£17,000 -1.3% £1,299,000 -£18,000 -1.4%

Athelney Primary School £2,348,000 £2,282,000 -£66,000 -2.8% £2,315,000 -£33,000 -1.4% £2,348,000 -£33,000 -1.4%

Baring Primary School £1,279,000 £1,245,000 -£34,000 -2.6% £1,262,000 -£17,000 -1.3% £1,279,000 -£17,000 -1.3%

Beecroft Garden Primary £2,121,000 £2,062,000 -£59,000 -2.8% £2,091,000 -£30,000 -1.4% £2,120,000 -£29,000 -1.4%

Bonus Pastor Catholic College £5,220,000 £5,074,000 -£146,000 -2.8% £5,147,000 -£73,000 -1.4% £5,220,000 -£73,000 -1.4%

Brindishe Green School £3,132,000 £3,044,000 -£88,000 -2.8% £3,088,000 -£44,000 -1.4% £3,132,000 -£44,000 -1.4%

Brindishe Lee School £1,324,000 £1,289,000 -£35,000 -2.7% £1,307,000 -£17,000 -1.3% £1,325,000 -£18,000 -1.4%

Brindishe Manor School £2,095,000 £2,037,000 -£58,000 -2.8% £2,066,000 -£29,000 -1.4% £2,095,000 -£29,000 -1.4%

Childeric Primary School £2,234,000 £2,173,000 -£61,000 -2.7% £2,204,000 -£30,000 -1.4% £2,235,000 -£31,000 -1.4%

Conisborough College £6,321,000 £6,145,000 -£176,000 -2.8% £6,233,000 -£88,000 -1.4% £6,321,000 -£88,000 -1.4%

Cooper's Lane Primary School £2,684,000 £2,609,000 -£75,000 -2.8% £2,646,000 -£38,000 -1.4% £2,683,000 -£37,000 -1.4%

Dalmain Primary School £2,041,000 £1,985,000 -£56,000 -2.8% £2,013,000 -£28,000 -1.4% £2,041,000 -£28,000 -1.4%

Deptford Green School £6,813,000 £6,654,000 -£159,000 -2.3% £6,719,000 -£94,000 -1.4% £6,784,000 -£65,000 -1.0%

Deptford Park Primary School £3,383,000 £3,287,000 -£96,000 -2.9% £3,335,000 -£48,000 -1.4% £3,383,000 -£48,000 -1.4%

Downderry Primary School £2,232,000 £2,170,000 -£62,000 -2.8% £2,201,000 -£31,000 -1.4% £2,232,000 -£31,000 -1.4%

Edmund Waller Primary School £2,158,000 £2,098,000 -£60,000 -2.8% £2,128,000 -£30,000 -1.4% £2,158,000 -£30,000 -1.4%

Elfrida Primary School £2,538,000 £2,467,000 -£71,000 -2.8% £2,503,000 -£35,000 -1.4% £2,539,000 -£36,000 -1.4%

Eliot Bank Primary School £2,222,000 £2,160,000 -£62,000 -2.8% £2,191,000 -£31,000 -1.4% £2,222,000 -£31,000 -1.4%

Fairlawn Primary School £2,104,000 £2,046,000 -£58,000 -2.8% £2,075,000 -£29,000 -1.4% £2,104,000 -£29,000 -1.4%

Forest Hill School £7,560,000 £7,349,000 -£211,000 -2.8% £7,455,000 -£105,000 -1.4% £7,561,000 -£106,000 -1.4%

Forster Park Primary School £2,594,000 £2,522,000 -£72,000 -2.8% £2,558,000 -£36,000 -1.4% £2,594,000 -£36,000 -1.4%

Good Shepherd RC School £1,198,000 £1,166,000 -£32,000 -2.7% £1,182,000 -£16,000 -1.3% £1,198,000 -£16,000 -1.4%

Gordonbrock Primary School £2,784,000 £2,707,000 -£77,000 -2.8% £2,745,000 -£39,000 -1.4% £2,783,000 -£38,000 -1.4%

Grinling Gibbons Primary School £1,406,000 £1,368,000 -£38,000 -2.7% £1,387,000 -£19,000 -1.3% £1,406,000 -£19,000 -1.4%

Haberdashers' Aske's Hatcham College £8,309,000 £8,065,000 -£244,000 -2.9% £8,187,000 -£122,000 -1.5% £8,309,000 -£122,000 -1.5%

Haberdashers' Aske's Knights Academy £7,594,000 £7,371,000 -£223,000 -2.9% £7,482,000 -£112,000 -1.5% £7,593,000 -£111,000 -1.5%

Haseltine Primary School £2,784,000 £2,706,000 -£78,000 -2.8% £2,745,000 -£39,000 -1.4% £2,784,000 -£39,000 -1.4%

Holbeach Primary School £2,460,000 £2,391,000 -£69,000 -2.8% £2,425,000 -£35,000 -1.4% £2,459,000 -£34,000 -1.4%

Holy Cross Primary School £1,076,000 £1,047,000 -£29,000 -2.6% £1,062,000 -£14,000 -1.3% £1,077,000 -£15,000 -1.4%

Holy Trinity Primary School £1,006,000 £980,000 -£26,000 -2.6% £993,000 -£13,000 -1.3% £1,006,000 -£13,000 -1.3%

These columns show illustrative NFF funding if the 

proposed formula had been implemented in full and 

without any transitional protections in 2016-17. We 

use pupil numbers and characteristics from 2016-17 

to illustrate the NFF impact, and compare to the 

school's baseline funding, including MFG. 

In the first year of transition towards the formula, LAs 

will continue to determine funding locally. This column 

illustrates the change in the amount the department 

would allocate to LAs in respect of each school, taking 

into account the maximum change proposed in NFF 

year 1 (gains of up to 3% and an MFG of -1.5% per 

pupil). 

Illustrative NFF - Total Loss Illustrative NFF - Loss In Year 1 Illustrative NFF - Loss In Year 2

This modelling will be affected by changes in 

pupil numbers and characteristsics, so the 

illustrations below should not be treated as a 

funding notification.



Horniman Primary School £1,254,000 £1,221,000 -£33,000 -2.7% £1,238,000 -£16,000 -1.3% £1,255,000 -£17,000 -1.4%

John Ball Primary School £2,438,000 £2,370,000 -£68,000 -2.8% £2,404,000 -£34,000 -1.4% £2,438,000 -£34,000 -1.4%

John Stainer Community Primary School £1,698,000 £1,651,000 -£47,000 -2.7% £1,674,000 -£24,000 -1.4% £1,697,000 -£23,000 -1.4%

Kelvin Grove Primary School £3,105,000 £3,018,000 -£87,000 -2.8% £3,061,000 -£44,000 -1.4% £3,104,000 -£43,000 -1.4%

Kender Primary School £2,129,000 £2,069,000 -£60,000 -2.8% £2,099,000 -£30,000 -1.4% £2,129,000 -£30,000 -1.4%

Kilmorie Primary School £2,599,000 £2,526,000 -£73,000 -2.8% £2,563,000 -£36,000 -1.4% £2,600,000 -£37,000 -1.4%

Launcelot Primary School £2,326,000 £2,261,000 -£65,000 -2.8% £2,293,000 -£33,000 -1.4% £2,325,000 -£32,000 -1.4%

Lucas Vale Primary School £2,137,000 £2,078,000 -£59,000 -2.8% £2,107,000 -£30,000 -1.4% £2,136,000 -£29,000 -1.4%

Marvels Lane Primary School £2,203,000 £2,142,000 -£61,000 -2.8% £2,172,000 -£31,000 -1.4% £2,202,000 -£30,000 -1.4%

Myatt Garden Primary School £2,162,000 £2,101,000 -£61,000 -2.8% £2,131,000 -£31,000 -1.4% £2,161,000 -£30,000 -1.4%

Our Lady and St Philip Neri Primary School £1,512,000 £1,472,000 -£40,000 -2.6% £1,492,000 -£20,000 -1.3% £1,512,000 -£20,000 -1.3%

Perrymount Primary School £1,279,000 £1,246,000 -£33,000 -2.6% £1,262,000 -£17,000 -1.3% £1,278,000 -£16,000 -1.3%

Prendergast Ladywell School £6,107,000 £5,930,000 -£177,000 -2.9% £6,018,000 -£89,000 -1.5% £6,106,000 -£88,000 -1.5%

Prendergast School £3,699,000 £3,594,000 -£105,000 -2.8% £3,646,000 -£53,000 -1.4% £3,698,000 -£52,000 -1.4%

Prendergast Vale School £4,887,000 £4,746,000 -£141,000 -2.9% £4,816,000 -£71,000 -1.4% £4,886,000 -£70,000 -1.5%

Rangefield Primary School £2,314,000 £2,250,000 -£64,000 -2.8% £2,282,000 -£32,000 -1.4% £2,314,000 -£32,000 -1.4%

Rathfern Primary School £2,415,000 £2,349,000 -£66,000 -2.7% £2,382,000 -£33,000 -1.4% £2,415,000 -£33,000 -1.4%

Rushey Green Primary School £2,917,000 £2,837,000 -£80,000 -2.7% £2,877,000 -£40,000 -1.4% £2,917,000 -£40,000 -1.4%

Sandhurst Infant and Nursery School £1,351,000 £1,315,000 -£36,000 -2.7% £1,333,000 -£18,000 -1.3% £1,351,000 -£18,000 -1.4%

Sandhurst Junior School £1,799,000 £1,749,000 -£50,000 -2.7% £1,774,000 -£25,000 -1.4% £1,799,000 -£25,000 -1.4%

Sedgehill School £7,582,000 £7,364,000 -£218,000 -2.9% £7,473,000 -£109,000 -1.4% £7,582,000 -£109,000 -1.5%

Sir Francis Drake Primary School £1,147,000 £1,117,000 -£30,000 -2.6% £1,132,000 -£15,000 -1.3% £1,147,000 -£15,000 -1.3%

St Augustine's Primary School £1,027,000 £1,000,000 -£27,000 -2.6% £1,014,000 -£13,000 -1.3% £1,028,000 -£14,000 -1.4%

St Bartholomews's Primary School £1,732,000 £1,684,000 -£48,000 -2.8% £1,708,000 -£24,000 -1.4% £1,732,000 -£24,000 -1.4%

St George's CofE Primary School £1,202,000 £1,170,000 -£32,000 -2.7% £1,186,000 -£16,000 -1.3% £1,202,000 -£16,000 -1.3%

St James's Hatcham Primary School £1,096,000 £1,067,000 -£29,000 -2.6% £1,081,000 -£15,000 -1.3% £1,095,000 -£14,000 -1.3%

St John Baptist Southend Primary School £1,051,000 £1,023,000 -£28,000 -2.6% £1,037,000 -£14,000 -1.3% £1,051,000 -£14,000 -1.4%

St Joseph's Catholic Primary School £1,498,000 £1,457,000 -£41,000 -2.7% £1,477,000 -£21,000 -1.4% £1,497,000 -£20,000 -1.4%

St Margaret's Lee Primary School £1,049,000 £1,021,000 -£28,000 -2.6% £1,035,000 -£14,000 -1.3% £1,049,000 -£14,000 -1.4%

St Mary Magdalen's Primary School £1,060,000 £1,032,000 -£28,000 -2.6% £1,046,000 -£14,000 -1.3% £1,060,000 -£14,000 -1.3%

St Mary's Lewisham Primary School £1,178,000 £1,147,000 -£31,000 -2.7% £1,163,000 -£15,000 -1.3% £1,179,000 -£16,000 -1.4%

St Matthew Academy £7,731,000 £7,503,000 -£228,000 -2.9% £7,617,000 -£114,000 -1.5% £7,731,000 -£114,000 -1.5%

St Michael's Primary School £1,195,000 £1,163,000 -£32,000 -2.6% £1,179,000 -£16,000 -1.3% £1,195,000 -£16,000 -1.4%

St Saviour's Primary School £1,050,000 £1,022,000 -£28,000 -2.6% £1,036,000 -£14,000 -1.3% £1,050,000 -£14,000 -1.4%

St Stephen's Primary School £1,172,000 £1,141,000 -£31,000 -2.7% £1,157,000 -£15,000 -1.3% £1,173,000 -£16,000 -1.4%

St William of York Primary School £1,137,000 £1,107,000 -£30,000 -2.6% £1,122,000 -£15,000 -1.3% £1,137,000 -£15,000 -1.3%

St Winifred's RC Primary School £1,835,000 £1,788,000 -£47,000 -2.6% £1,811,000 -£24,000 -1.3% £1,834,000 -£23,000 -1.3%

Stillness Infant School £1,316,000 £1,281,000 -£35,000 -2.6% £1,298,000 -£18,000 -1.3% £1,315,000 -£17,000 -1.3%

Stillness Junior School £1,589,000 £1,546,000 -£43,000 -2.7% £1,567,000 -£22,000 -1.4% £1,588,000 -£21,000 -1.3%

Sydenham School £6,967,000 £6,767,000 -£200,000 -2.9% £6,867,000 -£100,000 -1.4% £6,967,000 -£100,000 -1.5%

Tidemill Academy £2,493,000 £2,422,000 -£71,000 -2.8% £2,457,000 -£36,000 -1.4% £2,492,000 -£35,000 -1.4%

Torridon Infant School £1,559,000 £1,517,000 -£42,000 -2.7% £1,538,000 -£21,000 -1.4% £1,559,000 -£21,000 -1.4%

Torridon Junior School £1,858,000 £1,806,000 -£52,000 -2.8% £1,832,000 -£26,000 -1.4% £1,858,000 -£26,000 -1.4%

Trinity Church of England School, Lewisham £5,357,000 £5,203,000 -£154,000 -2.9% £5,280,000 -£77,000 -1.4% £5,357,000 -£77,000 -1.5%

Turnham Primary Foundation School £2,531,000 £2,459,000 -£72,000 -2.8% £2,495,000 -£36,000 -1.4% £2,531,000 -£36,000 -1.4%

This school has been excluded because it is a new school that is still filling up.

Haberdashers' Aske's Hatcham Temple Grove Free School



Schools Forum

17 January 2017

Item 5

36 Appendix B

Select LA name (drop-down) Lewisham
Area cost adjustment 

('ACA')

Region INNER LONDON 1.20

LA code 209

(A) Basic entitlement factor (6%) £3,028,808 Formula split for Lewisham

(B) Historic spend factor (47%) £22,710,156 Average LA formula split

(C) Population factor (17%) £8,507,908 (A) Basic entitlement factor (A) Basic entitlement factor (8%) 8%

(D) FSM factor (4%) £2,159,641 (B) historic factor (B) historic factor (44%) 44%

(E) IDACI factor (7%) £3,178,422 (C) population factor (C) population factor (22%) 22%

(F) Bad health factor (3%) £1,521,771 (D) FSM factor (D) FSM factor (4%) 4%

(G) Disability factor (3%) £1,482,643 (E) IDACI factor (E) IDACI factor (4%) 4%

(H) KS2 low attainment factor (2%) £1,138,614 (F) Bad health factor (F) Bad health factor (3%) 3%

(I) KS4 low attainment factor (3%) £1,234,403 (G) Disability factor (G) Disability factor (3%) 3%

(J) Funding floor factor (7%) £3,486,753 (H) KS2 factor (H) KS2 factor (3%) 3%

(K) Hospital education funding (1%) £292,855 (I) KS4 factor (I) KS4 factor (3%) 3%

NFF allocation before import/export 

adjustment (100%)
£48,741,975

(J) Funding floor factor
(J) Funding floor factor (3%) 3%

(L) Import/export adjustment (0%) (£90,000) (K) Hospital education Funding (K) Hospital education Funding (1%) 1%

Illustrative high needs NFF final allocation £48,651,975

Illustrative high needs NFF year 1 

allocation
£48,651,975

Number of pupils in special 

schools/academies
x Basic entitlement unit rate ACA = (A) Basic entitlement factor

629 x £4,000 1.20 = £3,028,808

(B)[i] Published LA baseline after 

adjustments
£49,705,000

(B)[ii] Schools block transfer -£1,053,025

(B)[iii] Baseline year basic 

entitlement
-£3,028,808

(B)[iv] Baseline year hospital 

education funding
-£292,855

Net imported/exported 

pupils/students in baseline 

year

Additional entitlement unit rate

15 £6,000 = £90,000

(B)[vi] Funding floor and year 1 

gains baseline
£45,420,312

(B) Historic spend factor

[m] = 50% x [l]
50% £45,420,312 = £22,710,156

2018 population in Lewisham x ACA

Total of ACA-weighted population

64,125 x 1.20

FSM pupil number in Lewisham x ACA

Total of ACA-weighted FSM population

8,347 x 1.20

x

x

x

x

                                                                                                                                                                           
11,558,351

(

(

(A) Basic entitlement factor

(B) Historic spend factor

(C) Population factor

(D) FSM factor

                                                                                                                        

£8,507,908£1,273,887,289x

(C) Population factor=Population factor fundingx

=)

) x £254,777,458 £2,159,641                                                                                                                                                                           =

x FSM factor funding = (D) FSM factor                                                                                                                        

(B)[v] Baseline year import/export 

adjustment

Formula split for Lewisham

(A) Basic entitlement factor (6%)

(B) Historic spend factor (47%)

(C) Population factor (17%)

(D) FSM factor (4%)

(E) IDACI factor (7%)

(F) Bad health factor (3%)

(G) Disability factor (3%)

(H) KS2 low attainment factor (2%)

(I) KS4 low attainment factor (3%)

(J) Funding floor factor (7%)

(K) Hospital education funding (1%)

Average LA formula split

(A) Basic entitlement factor (8%)

(B) historic factor (44%)

(C) population factor (22%)

(D) FSM factor (4%)

(E) IDACI factor (4%)

(F) Bad health factor (3%)

(G) Disability factor (3%)

(H) KS2 factor (3%)

(I) KS4 factor (3%)

(J) Funding floor factor (3%)

(K) Hospital education Funding (1%)



IDACI band F population for 

Lewisham x
ACA

Total of ACA-weighted IDACI band F population

9,519 x 1.20

IDACI band E population for 

Lewisham x
ACA

Total of ACA-weighted IDACI band E population

12,290 x 1.20

IDACI band D population for 

Lewisham x
ACA

Total of ACA-weighted IDACI band D population

7,710 x 1.20

IDACI band C population for 

Lewisham x
ACA

Total of ACA-weighted IDACI band C population

10,026 x 1.20

IDACI band B population for 

Lewisham x
ACA

Total of ACA-weighted IDACI band B population

10,112 x 1.20

IDACI band A population for 

Lewisham x
ACA

Total of ACA-weighted IDACI band A population

967 x 1.20

(E) IDACI factor £3,178,422

Bad health population for Lewisham
x

ACA

Total of ACA-weighted bad health population

442 x 1.20

DLA children in Lewisham x ACA

IDACI band D factor

IDACI band C factor

IDACI band B factor

IDACI band A factor

(F) Bad health factor

(G) Disability factor

IDACI band E factor

(

(

(

(D) FSM factor

IDACI band F factor

) x £254,777,458 £2,159,641

1,185,416

=

) x £35,668,844 £370,499                                                                                                                                                                           
1,103,199

=

x IDACI band F factor funding = IDACI band F factor
                                                                                                                        

£623,439                                                                                                                                                                           
967,387

=

x IDACI band E factor funding = IDACI band E factor
                                                                                                                        

£548,896                                                                                                                                                                           
818,541

=

x IDACI band D factor funding = IDACI band D factor
                                                                                                                        

£699,479                                                                                                                                                                           
703,389

=

x IDACI band C factor funding = IDACI band C factor
                                                                                                                        

£824,313                                                                                                                                                                           
865,357

=

x IDACI band B factor funding = IDACI band B factor
                                                                                                                        

£111,797                                                                                                                                                                           
318,346

=

x IDACI band A factor funding = IDACI band A factor
                                                                                                                        

(G) Disability factor                                                                                                                        

( ) £1,521,771                                                                                                                                                                           
66,812

x
                                                                                                                        

x £191,083,093 =

Bad health factor funding = (F) Bad health factor

x Disability factor funding =

£58,598,815

( ) x £30,573,295

( ) x

( ) x £40,764,393

( ) x £48,407,717

) x £40,764,393



Total of ACA-weighted DLA children

2,370 x 1.20

Low KS2 attainers in Lewisham x ACA

Total of ACA-weighted low KS2 attainers

724 x 1.20

Low KS4 attainers in Lewisham x ACA

Total of ACA-weighted low KS4 attainers

762 x 1.20

Total historic and proxy factor allocation 

(sum of (B) - (I))
£41,933,558

Funding floor baseline

Total historic spend and 

proxy factor allocation 

(sum of (B) - (I))

Difference between historic 

spend/proxy factors allocation and 

funding floor baseline

(J) Funding floor factor

£45,420,312 – £41,933,558 £3,486,753 £3,486,753

(K) Hospital education funding £292,855

 
NFF allocation before import/export 

adjustment
£48,741,975

Provider LA Resident LA Net imported/exported pupils/students

1,294 – 1,309 -15

Additional entitlement unit 

rate

=

Import/export adjustment

£6,000 -15 = -£90,000

 
Illustrative high needs NFF final 

allocation
£48,651,975

Gains due under the high needs NFF
Year 1 gains available, up 

to 3%
Total year 1 gain

£0 £0 £0

Basic entitlement factor, hospital 

education funding and import/export 

total

Funding floor/year 1 gain 

baseline

=

£3,231,663 + £45,420,312 £0 = £48,651,975

 

+

=

(J) Funding floor factor

Illustrative high needs NFF year 1 

allocation

(H) KS2 low attainment factor

(I) KS4 low attainment factor

(G) Disability factor

(G) Disability factorx Disability factor funding =

(H) KS2 low attainment factor                                                                                                                        

( ) x £191,083,093 £1,482,643                                                                                                                                                                           
367,701

=

=

£1,234,403                                                                                                                                                                           
141,998

x KS4 factor funding = (I) KS4 low attainment factor                                                                                                                        

( ) x £191,083,093 £1,138,614                                                                                                                                                                           
146,267

=

=

x

(L) Import/export adjustment

( ) x £191,083,093

x KS2 factor funding

=



Schools Forum  
17 January 2017 

Item 6 
 
 

 

LEWISHAM SCHOOLS FORUM  
 

 

REPORT TITLE 
 
 

 

Dedicated Schools Grant Budget Report 2017/18 
 

 

KEY DECISION 
 

 

Yes 
 

Item No.  
6 

 

CLASS 
 

 

Part 1 
 

Date  
 

17 January 2017 
 

 

 
1. Purpose of this Report  

 
The purpose of this report is to agree the Dedicated Schools Grant budget 
for 2017/18. 

 
2. Recommendations 
 

That the Forum agree: 
 

i) To allocate an extra £0.342m to schools on the basis of pupil 
numbers  

 
ii) That the £0.3m of the amount in recommendation (i) above 

be de-delegated to support borough wide school-led school 
improvement  

 
iii) That a PFI formula factor be introduced for secondary 

schools 
 

iv) That the PFI factor funds any annual school cost of a PFI 
scheme which equates to more than 10% of the school’s 
individual formula budget  

 
v) That the extra £0.5m allocated to the High Needs block be 

held in the High Needs Block 
 

vi) That school members by voting phase, agree the following 
budget for 2016/17 that will be de-delegated 

 

Ref Heading  Primary 
£’000 

Secondary 
£’000 

A De-delegation for mainstream 
schools for Contingencies 

460 190 

B Administration of free school 
meals 

44 22 

C Staff costs – Supply Cover 1,195 490 

D School Improvement Fund 191 72 

 
 



Schools Forum  
17 January 2017 

Item 6 
 

vii) That School members agree that the total direct spend on the 
admissions team should be £489k in 2017/18, an increase of 
£40k. 
 

viii) That the minimum funding guarantee is applied to all through 
schools in such a way that primary and secondary pupils are 
protected at their appropriate rates 
 

ix) To agree the terms of reference for the mutual funds  
 

a. Supply 
 

b. Contingency 
 

c. Growth fund 
 

x) To discontinue the Balance Control Mechanism 
 

xi) To note  
 

 the reduction to the Trade Union support budget 
 

 the cost pressures on schools  
 

 that work will be undertaken to review the overheads 
charged to the Dedicated Schools Grant  

 

 the position on additional hours for 3 and 4 year old  
 

 the position on the application of the MFG 
disapplication for special schools 

 

 that work will be undertaken to review the support 
services charged to the Dedicated Schools Grant  

 

 that a further report will be brought to the Forum on 
New Woodlands in March 

 
3. Settlement  
 
3.1 Funding Announcement  
 
3.1 The DSG for 2017/18 has provisionally been set by the Department for 

Education (DfE) at £290.7m, although this will change during the year to 
reflect updated pupil numbers. 

 
3.2 In comparison with last year, there is a £6.0m increase (1.5%) in the DSG.   

This is due to the following: 



Schools Forum  
17 January 2017 

Item 6 
 

 An increase of £0.4m driven by the estimated increase in pupil 
numbers, largely in the primary age group, while the amount per 
pupil has been frozen in cash terms.  

 Nationally an extra amount of £130m has been added to the High 
Needs Block. Lewisham will receive an extra £0.5m or 1.7% of this 
extra amount. 

 There has been a transfer from the Education Services Grant for 
retained duties of £0.6m 

 Extra funding of £2.8m has been built into the settlement to provide 
30 hours of childcare for working parents. This is effective from 1 
September 2017 and sits in the Early Years Block. 

 There is a transfer of £1.7m from the Education Funding Agency for 
the funding of High Needs pupils in FE institutions which will need to 
be met from the DSG in the future. 

 
3.3 Individual Schools’ Budgets (ISBs) vary year on year mainly due to 

changes to pupil numbers. The DfE’s schools’ Minimum Funding 
Guarantee (MFG) has been set at minus 1.5%, which relates to the 
funding level per pupil (i.e. the per-pupil funding in a school cannot fall by 
more than 1.5%).   
 

3.4 Lewisham will receive £ 5,875 per pupil for the schools block element of 
the Dedicated Schools Grant. The total number of pupils funded is 36,660. 
This equates to total funding of £215.4m. The funding formula allocates 
this to schools based on a number of funding factors. On average £5,092 
is allocated to Primary schools and £6,871 is allocated to secondary 
schools.  
 

3.5 The total Dedicated Schools Grant for 2017/18 is (subject to an adjustment 
for early years pupils actual numbers) 
 

Spending 
block £m 

    

Schools  215.370 

Early Years 24.620 

High Needs 50.700 

  290.690 

 
3.6 The spending blocks have been base lined this year in preparation for the 

national funding formula. There have been a number of technical 
adjustments. This has meant the schools block has reduced while the high 
needs block has increased. This is largely due to the transfer of the place 
led funding for pupils with high needs being transferred into the high needs 
block from the schools block. This has meant that for 2017/18 on a per 
pupil basis Lewisham is the 12th  highest funded authority in the country. 

 



Schools Forum  
17 January 2017 

Item 6 
 
 
3.7 Pupil Premium 
 
3.7.1 In addition to the DSG, schools will continue to receive the pupil premium. 

The majority of pupil premium is allocated to schools on the basis of the 
number of children who were entitled to a free school meal in the past six 
years to January 2017.   

  
3.7.2 In 2017/18 the rate of funding is set at the same level as 2016/17. This is 

£1,320 per primary child, £935 per secondary child and £1,900 per child in 
Looked After Care. The DfE does not provide forecasts of the total pupil 
premium. Officer’s calculations are for £16m for 2017/18, which is now the 
expected level for 2016/17. 
 
 

4 Calculation of Individual Schools Budget via Lewisham’s Funding 
Formula 
 

4.1 The funding Lewisham receives for the schools block within the DSG is 
based on pupil numbers only. Lewisham receives £5,875 per pupil. The 
changes in the data such as free meals ever 6 and IDACI does not 
influence the funding we receive. It does however alter the funding a 
school receives in its funding allocation through the formula. If the number 
of free meals decreases, the amount the funding formula allocates to 
schools decreases but the level of the DSG stays the same. There has 
been a significant drop in the number of pupil with free meal entitlements 
and an improvement in the attainment scores of our pupils. This means the 
funding formula will allocate £0.7m less to schools than in 2016/17. This 
then sits alongside the increase in overall funding we have received in the 
settlement of £0.4m. Which leaves a total of £1.1m to be distributed back 
in the formula. 
 

4.2 The full analysis of the £0.7m reduction can be seen in Appendix A. 
Broadly this relates all to the secondary sector. 
 

4.3 On a school by school basis the position varies and the £0.7m is not 
spread evenly amongst the secondary schools. One secondary school 
loses £0.7m while some gain. 

 
4.4 It is proposed to allocate the funding of £1.1m in two ways. The first way is 

by pupil numbers and secondly by introducing a PFI factor. 
 

4.4.1 All schools  
 
To allocate a sum of £0.342m to all schools and it is recommended that is 
allocated on the basis of pupil numbers (basic entitlement). This would see 
the following types of schools receive  
 
 
 



Schools Forum  
17 January 2017 

Item 6 
 

 
 
 
 
 
See section 5.7 relating to a second de-delegation proposal relating to this 
amount. 
 
 
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

4.4.2 PFI Factor  

4.4.3 At the last meeting of the Forum it was agreed to ask the funding task 
group to consider introducing a PFI factor into Lewisham’ funding formula 
to support schools which have unavoidable extra premises costs because 
they are a PFI school (At the meeting is was agreed to introduce a formula 
factor to cover the affordability gap on PFI schemes which is a separate 
matter). The Forum asked the group to consider this over the coming year. 

4.4.4 Since that meeting the second consultation on the national funding formula 
has been released. This throws up a number of important issues: firstly, as 
expected and discussed in the first item of this agenda, all Lewisham 
schools will lose funding and sit on the minimum funding guarantee next 
year. This means that there will be no funding to allocate to a PFI factor as 
all schools reach the lowest level of funding allowed under the national 
minimum funding guarantee. Even if the funding existed and was built into 
the funding formula for 2018/19, when the national funding formula was 
introduced in April 2019 the proposed cash floor of -3% per pupil would be 
based on the so called baseline for each school from the 2017/18 budget 
Again, as with the MFG, all our schools sit on the cash floor meaning that if 
a PFI factor was not introduced for this coming year, there would be no 
possibility to introduce one later on. 

4.4.5 To have any impact the PFI factor would have to be introduced this year.  

4.4.6 Under the national regulations, any PFI factor must be objective and clear 
and capable of being replicated for academies. An acceptable 
methodology would generally contain some of the features set out below  

 X% of the school’s budget share 
 £x per pupil 
 £x per square metre of floor area 
 historical lump sum previously agreed and indexed by x% per year 

 £ 
 

Large Secondary  7,822 

Small Secondary 4,600 

Large Primary 4,800 

Medium Primary  3,450 

Small Primary 1,725 



Schools Forum  
17 January 2017 

Item 6 
 

 Agreements may refer to proportions or elements of the school’s 
budget share which, due to changes in funding arrangements, may 
have changed significantly. Where this situation occurs, the DFE  
expect schools and local authorities to work together to agree an 
alternative arrangement, so that neither party is significantly 
disadvantaged. 

4.4.7 Each PFI scheme is different and as a consequence the costs the schools 
contribute in each scheme are different. Generally (but not always)  the 
earlier the PFI scheme, the more costly it is. It is also more costly 
proportionally if the school is not full. Consequently allocating funding out 
on a per pupil basis, floor area or via a lump sum may not reflect the need 
a school is facing.  

It is therefore proposed to allocate this additional funding on the 
percentage of school’s budget that their PFI spend represents.  

The Lewisham PFI schools spend is shown as a percentage of their 
budget in Appendix B and it is proposed to provide additional funding to 
schools where the spend is greater than 10% of the school’s ISB share. 
The consequence of this is also shown in this Appendix.  

4.4.8 Special schools are slightly different as they do not operate under a 
formula. When the data is analysed however, both special schools with a 
PFI scheme fall below the 10% cap. 

4.4.9 The decision making process on formula factors is that the Mayor decides 
but has to consult the Schools Forum.  

4.4.10 If the funding was applied to all schools instead, via either the basic 
entitlement or lump sum, the impact would be as follows  

  

  

 

 

 

 
 
5   Budgets Requiring Schools Forum Approval  
 
5.1 Members will recall that as part of the introduction of past national funding 

reforms there were changes to the rules governing the voting procedures. 
These particularly concerned the voting on the budget report. 

 

 Pupil 
Numbers 
basis £ 

 

Lump 
Sum  
basis 

Large Secondary  18,200 8,861 

Small Secondary 10,700 8,861 

Large Primary 11,200 8,861 

Medium Primary  8,000 8,861 

Small Primary 4,000 8,861 



Schools Forum  
17 January 2017 

Item 6 
 
5.2 The main change related to de-delegation of budgets where the voting  

was split between the primary and secondary phases of schools’ members 
(these being Headteachers and Governors). Academy and Special School 
representatives are not part of this vote as de-delegation is not permitted 
for these school types.   

 
5.3 The powers of the Forum also changed and it is now the role of the Forum 

to decide some budget levels rather than advise the Local Authority. Some 
of these budgets have to be decided individually.  

 
5.4 It is proposed to keep the budgets the same, apart from two - the 

admissions teams and non-sickness supply budget - and the introduction 
of a School Improvement de-delegation. 

 
5.5 Non-Sickness Supply Fund 
 
 Trade Union Activities 

The funds to be de-delegated have been reduced in the budget for 
2017/18 to £113k (this compares with £124k in 2016/17). This follows the 
decision of the Forum at meeting on the 6 October 2016 where it was 
agreed that financial support for the two teacher union branch secretaries 
who sit on their National Executive Committees and receive one day per 
week paid time off in term time would not continue. 
 
It was agreed that support for this was a heavy burden on Lewisham’s 
resources. While time off should be granted for this purpose, it was to be 
unpaid as it is considered a ‘trade union activity’ rather than a ‘trade union 
duty’ which does attract paid time off.  This will be effective from Sept 
2017. 
 
Recouping Overspends 
As a mutual fund, the non-sickness supply scheme needs to collect 
sufficient funds to cover its pay-outs. In 2014/15 the pay-outs were less 
than the amounts that schools contributed and the excess was returned to 
schools in 2015/16. However, in 2015/16 the scheme paid out £176k more 
than schools paid in and for 2016/17 it is anticipated that pay-outs will 
exceed contributions by £363k.  
 
For 2017/18 it will be necessary to increase the contributions by £363k to 
cover anticipated costs for the 2017/18 financial year (less the TOFTUA 
reduction) and by a further once off figure of £539k to cover the previous 
years’ overspends. This gives a 2017/18 de-delegation total of £1,685,000. 
Should next year’s claims prove to be less than the amount contributed, 
then Forum would have the option to return any balance to schools or 
carry it forward for the following year. 
 

5.6.  Admissions 
 

At the Forum meeting on the 6 October 2016 it was noted that there was a 
growing pressure on officers’ time in the admissions team, partly as a 



Schools Forum  
17 January 2017 

Item 6 
 

result of the overall increase in pupil numbers and partly due to the 
increasing complexity of case work.  The team’s responsibilities cover the 
following. 

 
o Counsel and advise parents on the admissions process.  

 
o Process an increasing number of applications.   

 
o Respond to growing numbers of enquiries; telephone, emails, 

complaints, MP enquiries etc.:  
 

o Present and defend admission appeals – in a year the local 
authority was unable to meet demand for reception class places the 
team presented and defended 120 admissions appeals. 

 
o Meet groups of parents – when the council cannot meet demand in 

a particular area,  Councillors agree to meet with groups of parents 
which requires Officer presence. 

 
o Have a lead on customer services and communications to manage 

the relationships with schools. 
 

o Respond to customer enquiries including emails.  So far this 
academic year (autumn term only) the team has processed 1777 in 
year applications; 1346 requests for primary school places and 431 
requests for secondary school places 

 
o Lewisham has purchased Enrol, an on line system to enable 

parents to make their in year application and it is proposed that a 
new post be created to supervise in year offers and to lead on the 
implementation and testing of this new system.  

 
The Forum proposed that the budget be increased to reflect this and £40k 
has been added to this to support one post. In preparation of additional 
resources a job description has been drafted and evaluated by HR.  This 
will increase the 2016/17 budget of £449k to £489k for 2017/18  

 
5.7. School Improvement De-Delegation Fund  
 

Under the national school funding regulations that are coming into force for 
2017 to 2018, school improvement support offered to maintained schools 
is now included in the list of de-delegated services. This is in addition to 
the cost of the meeting the LA’s statutory duties covered by a new school 
improvement grant.  
 
In order for an item to be de-delegated the Schools Forum approval is 
required. The process provides that the funding is added to the schools 
individual budget and then a charge is made to the school for the same 
amount.  
 



Schools Forum  
17 January 2017 

Item 6 
 

School Improvement has been added to the list of de-delegated list of 
services as the Education Services Grant that previously funded the 
service has been stopped. The loss of funding to Lewisham is £2.9m, of 
which roughly £0.8m was spent on school improvement.  
 
Central government will provide a transitional arrangement up to end of the 
summer term of £0.7m for all the services met from the grant.  It is likely 
that only £0.2m of this will be available to spend on school improvement.   
After this time there will no longer be any funds to provide school 
improvement other than the element of funding in the DSG for statutory 
school improvement work  
 
It is proposed the extra funding of £0.3m allocated to schools in paragraph 
4.4.1 is de-delegated to support borough wide school-led school 
improvement using the same basis as will be used to calculate the 
allocation. The use of this funding will then be reported back to the Forum 
as part of the monitoring reports. 
 

6 Principles agreed by the schools Forum on 8 December 2016 
 

It was noted at the last meeting of the Schools Forum that the forecast 
future growth in the pupils with Education, Health and Care plans would 
create a spending pressure of £1.7m in 2017/18.  It was agreed to make 
savings of to cover the £1.7m by  
 

 A reduction in Special Schools’ (excludes New Woodlands) budgets 
of £0.5m 

 That £1.0m of the capital expenditure from Revenue (CERA) budget 
in the Schools Block of the DSG is used to offset the pressure  

 the saving agreed last year on Alternative Provision of £0.2m 
covering both Abbey Manor college and New Woodlands 
 

7.  Special Schools  
 
7.1 Outcome of banding review  

 
The revised banding numbers after the appeals are as follows  
 
 

Pupil Numbers Brent Knoll Drumbeat Greenvale Watergate Total 

Band E 32 19 21 0 72 

Band F 78 102 30 21 231 

Band G 35 37 60 79 211 

Total 145 158 111 100 514 

Percentage 
    

  

Band E 22% 12% 19% 0% 14% 

Band F 54% 65% 27% 21% 45% 

Band G 24% 23% 54% 79% 41% 

 



Schools Forum  
17 January 2017 

Item 6 
 
 
7.2 The financial impact is shown below: 

 

 
Before £0.5m 

Reduction  
After £0.5m 
Reduction 

  Band E  £           6,200.00     £             5,859.00  

Band F  £         15,200.00  
 

 £          14,742.00  

Band G  £         27,900.00     £          26,365.00  

    Funding Variance from Old Banding Structure 

    

 
Before £0.5m 

Reduction  
After £0.5m 
Reduction 

  Brent Knoll  £       170,155.00     £          69,794.00  

Drumbeat -£      399,500.00  
 

-£       509,490.00  

Watergate -£        92,284.00  
 

-£       223,167.00  

Greenvale  £       255,592.00     £        142,591.00  

Total Change -£        66,037.00    -£       520,272.00  

 
 
7.3 Application To Disapply The Minimum Funding Guarantee (MFG) 

 
An application was submitted to the DFE to disapply the MFG in order to 
allow the changes agreed to the special school banding review to be 
introduced. The minister has agreed the application subject to the 
individual schools’ agreement. This will be sought shortly. 
 
The extra funding received in the high needs block of £0.5m is proposed to 
be held in the high needs block and will be used either as a contingency to 
use in case of the schools not agreeing the disapplication or to meet the 
inflationary cost pressures within the high needs block. 
  

8. Alternative Provision  
 

It is planned to fund children on roll at New Woodlands on the new 
universal high needs banding system in line with the other Special 
Schools. This will be implemented from the 1 April 2017. The new funding 
rates for a place at New Woodlands School will be based on the principal 
that money should follow the pupil. A detailed report will be brought to the 
Forum in March but a verbal update will be given at the meeting on the 
impact on schools.  
 
Details of the outreach service will also be brought to the March meeting. 
The budget at the moment has been set at last year’s level.  
 
 
 

 



Schools Forum  
17 January 2017 

Item 6 
 
9. Minimum Funding Guarantee - All through Schools  
 

The Minimum Funding Guarantee (MFG) protects schools’ per pupil 
funding levels. For former secondary schools that are still expanding into 
the primary phase, this would lead to new primary pupils being funded 
inappropriately at secondary funding levels. The DfE stipulates an 
adjustment to the operation of the MFG in such cases which protects the 
two age groups at the appropriate levels.  

 
10 Cost Pressures 
 
10.1 The overall cost pressure through inflation excluding business rates is 

expected to average 1.7%.Pay awards are assumed to be 1% next year 
and general inflation around 2.5%.  

 
10.2 Pension  
 
 There is no planned increase in either the Teacher Pension Scheme (TPS) 

or the Local Government Pension Scheme from April 2017. The Treasury 
are proposing though to increase the TPS contribution rate that employers 
pay from 2019-20. Nationally this is expected to be £4.2 billion. On the 
assumption that the Treasury estimates are right and there are no other 
changes in the valuation, this implies an extra cost for TPS employers 
(state schools, private schools, colleges and new universities) of about 
£430 million. Or, to put it another way, the employer contribution rate can 
be expected to rise from its current level at 16.48% to just over 18%. 

 
10.3 Apprenticeship Levy and Maintained Schools  
 

This comes into effect next year and represents a charge of 0.5% of the 
pay bill. However the regulations are not as straight forward as that. The 
liability for the levy depends on the type of maintained school. 

 
There are two categories of maintained school: 

 
a)      Community and Voluntary Controlled (VC) schools. In these schools 
the local authority is the employer and therefore all staff in community/VC 
schools are added on to the pay bill of the council, with the levy equivalent 
to 0.5% of the overall pay bill for the local authority (LA). All community/VC 
schools pay bills will need to be included in the LA’s calculation, regardless 
of whether the school uses the council for payroll services.  

 
b)      Voluntary Aided (VA) and Foundation schools. In these schools (as 
in academies) the governing body is considered to be the employer, rather 
than the LA. Therefore each VA/foundation school’s liability for the levy will 
be based on its own pay bill. Therefore if a VA/foundation employer has a 
pay bill of over £3 million a charge of 0.5% will apply. The school will 
however receive a £15,000 rebate to cover costs. 

 
 



Schools Forum  
17 January 2017 

Item 6 
 

All Community/VC schools will have to make provision for the relevant cost 
of the levy in their individual budgets for 2017/18 onwards, in the same 
way as other payroll costs e.g. National Insurance etc.  
 
VA/foundation schools with pay bills over £3m will similarly need to ensure 
they have taken account of this additional cost when they set their budgets 
for 2017/18 onwards. 
 
The impact will vary for each school but if the school is a community or 
Voluntary Controlled school broadly the cost will be  
 

 £ 

  

Large Secondary  30,000 

Small Secondary 15,000 

Large Primary 9,000 

Medium Primary  7,000 

Small Primary 4,000 

 
 
The Levy money will be paid into a HMRC digital account for each 
employer who can then access this funding to support investment in 
apprenticeships. In addition to this the government will top those funds up 
by a further 10%.    
 
Schools will be able to access the funding to pay for apprenticeships and 
professional development for staff. The funding can only cover the cost of 
training and assessment and it cannot be used to cover the actual salary of 
the apprentices.  
 
The term apprenticeship can cover professional development up to level 7 
(Masters level) and this is not restricted to young staff. It will be key for 
academies and schools to identify eligible programmes that they can 
deliver to use the funds. School leaders will need to consider that there will 
be a 24 months period for any funding to ‘use it or lose it’. Currently further 
clarification is being sought from central government on how the system 
will work and schools will be notified and sent guidance as soon as 
possible.  
 

 
11 Mutual Fund Terms of Reference 
 

 The Schools Forum holds two mutual funds for schools with terms of 
reference which require annual approval; the Contingency Fund and the 
Growth Fund.  
 
The 2017/18 Growth Fund terms of reference are attached at Appendix C 
for formal approval in order that this can be minuted and provided to the 
DfE.  
 



Schools Forum  
17 January 2017 

Item 6 
 

The 2017/18 terms of reference for the Contingency Funds are also 
attached as Appendix D. The document is unchanged from previous years.  
 
The Growth Fund terms of reference have been amended (with changes 
highlighted) such that re-cycled bulge classess are not funded. That is 
where a previous bulge class has moved on to Secondary and a new 
reception class is formed. The rationale for this is that the class that leaves 
for secondary will be on the October census and will then provide the 
funding for the reception class who are not on the census. The Forum is 
also asked to formally agree these. 

 
12. Support Services Charges  
 

As the implementation of the National Funding Formula gathers pace 
ahead of its introduction from April 2018 and with the DFE having already 
re-aligned the funding block and plans to create a further funding block for 
central services, it is appropriate to review the support service charges 
made to the DSG by the Council for services provided to schools.  The 
removal of the Education Services Grant (ESG) in 2017/18, except for the 
introduction of a small element of the ESG into the DSG, has further 
complicated the matter of overheads.  It is therefore opportune that as all 
these changes come together, that the charges paid by schools to the 
Council for services rendered are reviewed to make sure they are 
appropriate and fully costed if not how they are re-aligned. At the next 
meeting of the Forum further information will be provided. 

 
 
13.  Balance Control Mechanism (BCM) 
 

For some years the Forum has operated a Balance Control Mechanism 
(BCM) which allows for the removal of excess balances from schools 
where there is no plan for these amounts that has been validated by the 
authority.  At its meeting on the 10 December 2016 the Forum agreed to 
suspend the Balance Control Mechanism with a review on continuation in 
a year’s time, as schools budgets were starting to come under pressure. 
 
With schools’ budget pressures continuing with likely reductions of 10% for 
all schools over the next three years it is proposed that the Balance 
Control Mechanism is discontinued.  
 

  
 
 

Dave Richards  

Group Finance Manager – Children and Young People 

Contact on 020 8314 9442 or by e-mail at dave.richards@lewisham.gov.uk 



Item 6 DSG Budget Report 2017/18

Appendix A

Primary 94,434,354£        93,639,215£       795,139£     0.8%

KS3 36,394,826£        35,444,569£       

KS4 22,710,249£        23,892,797£       

FSM6 Primary 9,926,657£          10,478,379£       551,722-£     

FSM6 Secondary 8,216,968£          8,286,560£         69,592-£        

IDACI Band  F Primary 268,533£              268,680£             

IDACI Band  E Primary 506,436£              504,753£             

IDACI Band  D Primary 436,326£              974,792£             

IDACI Band  C Primary 567,029£              616,462£             

IDACI Band  B Primary 623,152£              32,057£               

IDACI Band  A Primary 30,792£                -£                     

IDACI Band  F Secondary 215,887£              216,887£             

IDACI Band  E Secondary 390,974£              397,632£             

IDACI Band  D Secondary 378,974£              919,372£             

IDACI Band  C Secondary 557,437£              525,761£             

IDACI Band  B Secondary 540,748£              37,275£               

IDACI Band  A Secondary 38,002£                -£                     

EAL 3 Primary 3,120,858£          3,049,645£         71,213£        

EAL 3 Secondary 618,510£              647,728£             29,218-£        

Primary Mobility 97,551£                122,445£             24,893-£        

Secondary Mobility -£                      3,365£                 3,365-£          

Primary Low Attainment 6,345,647£          6,683,903£         338,256-£     

Secondary Low Attainment 4,219,167£          4,406,473£         187,306-£     

Lump Sum 11,254,577£        11,254,577£          11,254,577£       11,254,577£         -£              0.0%

Split Sites 305,400£              305,400£                305,400£             305,400£               -£              0.0%

Rates 3,394,492£          3,394,492£            3,392,897£         3,392,897£            1,595£          0.0%

Rent - Actual Costs 167,521£              167,521£                154,125£             154,125£               13,396£        8.7%

St Winifreds lump sum -£                      -£                        99,724£               99,724£                 99,724-£        -100.0%

MFG 1,029,842£          1,029,842£            1,127,235£         1,127,235£            97,393-£        -8.6%

206,790,907£      206,790,907£        207,482,706£     207,482,706£       691,798-£     -0.3%

Primary Data 116,357,335£      116,370,331£     12,995-£        0.0%

Secondary Data 74,281,740£        74,778,417£       496,678-£     -0.7%

Other Data 16,151,832£        16,333,958£       182,125-£     -1.1%

206,790,907£      207,482,706£     691,798-£     -0.3%

3,836,920£            

10,564,814£          11,090,376.08£    525,562-£        

152,976,581£       562,848£        

23,258,608£         

3,823,183£            

2017/18 2016/17

232,291-£     
153,539,429£        

22,697,913£          

-4.7%

Year On Year Movement

41,996£          

28,258-£          

1.3%

1.1%

-22.5%

-2.9%621,314-£        

60,618£          

35,524£        

25,094£        

-0.4%



Item 6 DSG Budget Report 2017/18     

Appendix B     

     

School Name PFI Costs 1 ISB Funding 2 PFI As % Of 
ISB 

Amount In 
Excess Of 10% 

     

Deptford Green School              835,194                6,629,167  12.6%           172,277  

Conisborough College              606,682                6,877,135  8.8%                       -    

Sedgehill Secondary School          1,090,736                9,672,678  11.3%           123,469  

Forest Hill School              916,408                8,996,543  10.2%              16,754  

Ladywell Fields College          1,031,738                6,768,431  15.2%           354,895  

Trinity Church of England School              435,891                5,155,209  8.5%                       -    

Bonus Pastor Catholic College              513,389                5,167,039  9.9%                       -    

Prendergast Vale College              573,168                5,188,011  11.0%              54,367  

          6,003,207              54,454,213  87.6%           721,762  

     
1 As Provided By PFI Team     
2 I01, I02,I03 And I04 

   

 

 

 



Schools Forum  

1 January 2017  

Item 6 Appendix C  

 

Lewisham’s Schools Forum Growth Fund 2016/17 

Overview of Fund 

The Schools Forum operates this mutual fund on behalf of schools. The fund 
supports schools that are expanding to meet basic needs. The expansions 
supported are typically through provision of a bulge class, increase in the numbers of 
forms of entries or the extension of the age range. The object of the fund is to ensure 
that the school has sufficient funding to deliver the curriculum. 

Entry into the funding  

The Schools Forum holds the funding centrally on behalf of all primary and 
secondary schools. All schools are automatically enrolled. Academies can contribute 
their share of the funding to enrol. 

Request and Consideration of allocations 

a) Bulge classes. 

All bulge classes will need to be agreed with Local Authority before they are 
set up. As LA’s are only allowed to use the Growth Fund to meet basic needs 
(the funding of expansions at popular schools is specifically prohibited), the 
funding covered by this paragraph will only apply to bulge classes opened at 
the request of the Local Authority.                                                              
Bulge Class funding is allocated in recognition of the provision of places 
during a financial year that were not available at the time of the census upon 
which the year’s funding was based.                                                         
Where a once-off increase in a school’s intake-year place numbers results in 
an increase in the total number of places across the school compared to the 
previous year, they will receive an amount per additional place in the year 
created, plus a smaller amount for ongoing resources in subsequent years as 
the class moves through the school years. The funding will be based on a 
standard tariff of funding rates reviewed annually by the Schools Forum.  
There will be no need for a school to make an application for funds as funding 
will be triggered automatically.                                                                   
Where a once-off increase in a school’s intake-year place numbers does not 
lead to an increase in the total number of places across the school compared 
to the previous year (e.g. where a bulge class leaving the school in July is 
replaced by a bulge class in September of the same year), no allocation will 
be made. 

 
b) Permanent expansions 
 
Where an increase in the intake form of entry leads to the number of funded 



Schools Forum  

1 January 2017  

Item 6 Appendix C  

 

pupils for a school being lower than the number of pupils that will be on the 
roll of the school for all or part of the year, the additional form(s) of entry (or 
half-forms) will result in funding based of a standard tariff of funding rates 
reviewed annually by the Schools Forum. There will be no need for a school 
to make an application for funds as funding will be triggered automatically. 
 
c) Other expansions. 

Other school expansions can come in a variety of forms. Generally they are 
through increases in the number of forms of entry or an extension to the age 
range of the school. This variety coupled with the different circumstances that 
each school may find themselves in, particularly being located on different 
sites means it is not possible to define a tariff of funding support to cover all 
eventualities. The process to obtain funding is therefore through a bidding 
process. Advice and guidance will be available through the Local Authority in 
preparing the bid. 
 
Schools in receipt of automatic funding under b) Permanent expansions, may 
be eligible for additional funding in certain circumstances (e.g. expansion into 
a new phase). Schools in receipt of automatic funding under a) Bulge classes, 
will not be eligible for additional funding. 

The administration of the fund is undertaken by the Local Authority on behalf of the 
Forum. All bids need to be sent to the Lewisham’s Schools Finance Team who will 
collate and comment on the bids before presenting it to the Schools Forum for 
consideration. Schools will need to ensure that any applications for funding support 
are provided to the Local Authority at least three weeks before the next Schools 
Forum meeting in order for them to be considered. The application will otherwise be 
heard at the following meeting of the Forum.  

The decision of the Schools Forum will be final.   

An annual review of the mutual fund will take place. Consideration will be given to 
returning any surplus to schools or carrying it forward to the next financial year. Any 
deficits on the fund will be carried forward and set against next year’s budget.  

Agreements made by the local authority prior to April 2013 that cover future years 
will be honoured by the fund.  

The funding does not cover Capital or Post 16 funding where expansion of provision 
is met by the Education Funding Agency. 

A monitoring statement will be presented to the Forum at each meeting. 

 



Schools Forum  

1 January 2017  

Item 6 Appendix C  

 

The tariff for bulge classes is as follows 

Allocation Basis  £ 

1st year set up cost For 30 Places 55,000 

On-going resources For 30 Places 2,000 

The tariff for permanent expansions is as follows 

Allocation Basis  £ 

In each qualifying year For 30 Places 55,000 

 

 

 

Example – Permanent Expansions 

A one form entry school with 196 pupils over 7 classes at the time of the October 
census will be funded on this number of pupils in the following financial year. If in 
that following financial year, the school expands to two forms of entry with 56 
reception pupils over two classes, the number on roll will be 224. The school’s actual 
roll thereby exceeding the funded number by reason of a permanent expansion. This 
school would automatically receive an additional lump sum. 

A one form entry school with a bulge class in year 6 and a roll of 224 at the time of 
the October census will be funded on this number of pupils in the following financial 
year. If in that following financial year, the school expands to two forms of entry with 
58 reception pupils over two classes, the number on roll will be 226. In this instance 
the expansion has not led to the funded number being less than the roll (although 
recruitment has led to a mismatch) and the school would not receive any automatic 
funding. 



Schools Forum  

17 January 2017  

Item 6 Appendix D 

 

Lewisham Schools Forum Contingency Fund  

Overview of Fund 

The Schools Forum operates this mutual fund on behalf of schools. The fund allows 
schools to make bids for emergency funding in relation to circumstances over which 
schools would have had no control rather than as a result of their general 
management of their budget. If a school falls into deficit the expectation is that the 
school will be granted a licensed deficit whereby the school will address the shortfall 
over a three year period (5 year in exceptional circumstances). The fund covers 
significant and unexpected items of expenditure only that without support would 
impact on the schools standards. It does not cover funding for bulge classes, the 
expansion of existing schools or start-up funding for new schools. This is covered by 
a separate mutual fund known as the Growth Fund. 

Entry into the fund 

The Schools Forum holds the funding centrally on behalf of maintained primary and 
secondary schools. Special Schools are not eligible unless they specifically 
subscribe to the fund. The charge is based on an amount per pupil, which will be 
their notional share of the current central budget. This figure will have been built into 
their school budget. 

Request and consideration of allocations 

Schools will need to apply for any support by using the template provided. The 
administration of the fund is undertaken by the Local Authority on behalf of the 
Forum. All bids need to be sent to the Lewisham’s Schools Finance Team who will 
collate and comment on the bid before presenting it to the Schools Forum for 
consideration. Schools will need to ensure that any applications for funding support 
are provided to the Local Authority at least three weeks before the next Schools 
Forum meeting in order for them to be considered. Otherwise the application will be 
heard at the following meeting of the Forum.  

The decision of the Schools Forum will be final.   

An annual review of the mutual fund will take place. Consideration will be given to 
returning any surplus to schools or carrying it forward to the next financial year. Any 
deficits on the fund will be carried forward and set against next year’s budget.  

Circumstances for claims on the funds 

The circumstances in which schools may make claims on the fund are set out below:  

 



Schools Forum  

17 January 2017  

Item 6 Appendix D 

 

Large Reductions in schools budget  

Schools are largely funded on the basis of pupil numbers as at the October census. 
Between years a school can have a large drop in numbers. Normally this would be 
expected to be managed by the school. In cases were the fall in funding would result 
in significant numbers of staff being made redundant there is a danger that this could 
adversely impact on the delivery of the curriculum. In cases were the funding of the 
school falls by more than 5% in the funding formula plus early years funding 
(adjusted accordingly if funding mechanism change between years), a school can 
bid for funding  to replace the amount of funding lost over and above 5%.  All 
circumstances within the school will be taken into account by the Forum on deciding 
the level of support. 

Closing Schools  

When a school closes or ceases to exist (unless under an academy conversion) in 
the Lewisham family of schools, then the deficit will be written off against the fund. 

Closure of Premises 

Where additional premises costs, falling on a school’s delegated budget, arise 
because all or part of a school is closed and /or unavailable with the agreement of 
the local authority, then the school may make a claim on the contingency fund. 

Emergencies and Exceptional Circumstances 

Schools may submit claims for additional funding to cover costs resulting directly 
from emergencies and exceptional circumstances. In such cases a school’s financial 
position, including the level of any unspent balances held, will be taken into account 
when claims are considered. 

Errors in School Budget Calculation 

Funding will be given for any proven errors in budget calculation. Under the 
regulations this is to be adjusted in the following financial year but the funding will be 
firstly called on through the Mutual Fund. 

Financial Difficulties 

Schools with severe long-term financial difficulties may apply to have part of 
historically-accumulated deficits written off.  

 

 



Schools Forum  

17 January 2017  

Item 6 Appendix D 

 

Rates 

Where an actual school rates bill is greater than the funded estimated rates figure, 
compensation will be given for the excess. The adjustment will be made in the 
following financial year but be met from the Mutual Fund in the first instance. 

 


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of the Meeting 8 December 2016
	5 Funding Consultation
	Item 5 - Appendix A - National Funding Formula Consultation
	Item 5 - Appendix B - National Funding Formula Consultation

	6 Dedicated Schools Grant Budget Report 2017/18
	Item 6 - Appendix A - DSG Budget Report 2017-18 - ISB Movements
	Item 6 - Appendix B - DSG Budget Report 2017-18 - PFI
	Item 6 - Appendix C - DSG Budget Report 2017-18 - Growth Fund
	Item 6 - Appendix D - DSG Budget Report 2017-18 - Contingency


